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WATERSTONES BOOKSELLERS LIMITED REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2023
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Introduction

The Directors present the Strategic Report of Waterstones Booksellers Limited (the “Company”) for the 52 week
period ended 29 April 2023.

Principal activities

The Company is part of the Waterstones group of companies (“Waterstones”). Waterstones is a leading retailer of
books, stationery and other related products through a chain of bookshops in the United Kingdom, the Republic of
Ireland, Isle of Man, Jersey, Holland and Belgium, and online through various branded e-commerce websites.
Waterstones also sells coffee and food from cafés and restaurants within some of its shops, hosts public and private
events and supports a large number of literary festivals.

Review of the business

Waterstones continues to seek to improve the standards of bookselling within its shops by the training and enhanced
career development of its booksellers and to support this with investment in the shops themselves and in the
operational infrastructure.

Footfall and sales continue to recover post pandemic, with encouraging growth in London and other metropolitan city
centres as tourist numbers increase and workers return to offices. Waterstones has benefited from the increased
popularity of both reading and physical bookshops, supported notably by social media and positive press coverage.
During the year, disruptions to the central distribution centre, caused by the implementation of a new warehouse
management system, impacted sales and resulted in both the temporary elevation of operating costs and reduction in
margin. The Company continues to invest in both our people and our shops to improve the standards of bookselling
and has successfully opened further new bookshops.

Sales have risen to £452m, including for the impact of the acquisition of Blackwell Limited and its subsidiaries
(“Blackwell’s”) in August 2022 in a common control acquisition, see Note 32. The bookshop portfolio is now over 320
shops located across the United Kingdom, the Republic of Ireland, Isle of Man, Jersey, Holland and Belgium, Profitability
has been impacted by system implementation costs and also by the increase in other operational expenses.

The online business continues to deliver a strong performance. Following the acquisition of Blackwell’s, Blackwells.co.uk
and Wordery.com have been added to our existing online brands and expand book sales to a wider global customer
base.

The financial statements are made up to the Saturday on or immediately preceding 30 April each year. Consequently,
the financial statements for the current period cover the 52 weeks ended 29 April 2023, whilst the comparative period
covered the 53 weeks ended 30 April 2022.

Sales for the 52 week period ended 29 April 2023 were £452.5m (2022: £399.8m) resulting in an operating profit before
exceptional items of £29.3m (2022: £60.5m). Exceptional operating charges totalled £15.4m (2022: £2.9m) comprising
impairment of right-of-use assets and tangible fixed assets and direct and indirect costs relating to a system
implementation (see note 5). This resulted in an operating profit after exceptional items of £13.9m (2022: £57.6m).

The profit after taxation amounted to £12.0m (2022: £42.1m). No dividend was paid or declared during the period
(2022: £nil).
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STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)

Section 172(1) Statement

As a subsidiary of Book Retail Bidco Limited (“Bidco™), our governance approach is determined at the Bidco board
level for the group it heads up (“the Group”).

In accordance with the Companies (Miscellaneous Reporting) Regulations 2018 amendments to the Companies Act
2006, the Directors are required to set out how they have had regard to the matters in section 172 (I):

a) the likely consequences of any decision in the long term;

b) the interests of the Group’s employees;

c) the need to foster the Group's business relationships with suppliers, customers and others;

d) the impact of the Group's operations on the community and the environment;

e) the desirability of the Group maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct; and
f) the need to act fairly between members of the Group.

We have adopted the Wates Corporate Governance Principles for Large Private Companies which provides a
framework for the Company to demonstrate how the Company satisfies the requirements of s172(1) duty to promote
the success of the Company as well as setting out how the Company engages with key stakeholders and employees.
This is set out on the following pages.

Wates corporate governance statement

The Company’s corporate governance arrangements are consistent with the Wates Corporate Governance Principles
for Large Private Companies and the Company is not aware of any material departures.

Purpose and leadership

The Board remains focused on the long term sustainability of the business, including generating value for shareholders
and contributing to the wider communities in which the business operates. Our vision is to continue to champion good
books through our interesting bookshops and good bookselling through the excellence of our booksellers.

The board meets on a quarterly basis, at which shareholder representatives are updated on the performance of the
business and key operational issues. Important strategic decisions are discussed and approved at the Board.

We have implemented policies and tools to support the execution of our vision. Bookselling proficiency and career
progression is a central focus, supported by such initiatives as our Bookseller Development Programme. We work to
improve employee engagement including support for mental well-being, training and communication around equality,
diversity and inclusiveness and continued refinement of our Code of Conduct.

We continue also to build our online presence so that the very essence of Waterstones (and its group companies) is
available online and through our mobile app.

Board composition
As a subsidiary of Bidco our long-term strategy and objectives are determined at Bidco board level.

The size and composition of our Board is appropriate for the scale of the business. Diversity of thought is encouraged
through open debate and challenge.

The Board is supported by senior management who govern the day-to-day aspects of the business and ensure
information is accurate and is conveyed in a timely manner to the board. The Board is committed to supporting an
inclusive business and recognise this to be an area of continual improvement. Regular communication is made to
employees via multiple channels, including email, company Intranet, team meetings, etc.

The Directors undertake training, as required, to ensure they are kept abreast of legal and regulatory changes.
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STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)

Wates corporate governance statement (continued)

Director responsibilities

The appointed Directors have the appropriate skill set and relevant experience to discharge their responsibilities. The
Board delegates certain responsibility to senior executives in the Company and regular management meetings are held;
following these, information is collated and cascaded up to the Board, including sales and financial information,
operational and employee matters.

The Chairman, with support from the Company Secretary, assumes responsibility for the accuracy and timely
submission of information to the Board. Key information is verified by external independent groups where appropriate,
with our annual financial statements audited by Ernst & Young.

Opportunity and risk

The Board meets regularly to take decisions intended to promote the ongoing success of the Company. Key decisions
are communicated as necessary following such board meetings to all relevant stakeholders including for example in
relation to the health and safety of employees and customers, wider group acquisitions and the Company’s investment
plans.

Strategic opportunities are highlighted at management level and discussed at the board level. Risk management is
delegated to management and considered at board level. A summary of our principal risks is included on page 6. The
Board actively seeks to mitigate and manage the risks identified.

The Board manages risk through internal systems and controls, with rigorous approval processes in place for contracts
and expenditure. Focus is given to data protection and security and the integrity of IT systems across the Group.

Remuneration

In determining remuneration policies, the Group's primary objective is to attract and retain talent as this is recognised
to be the foundation of the Group’s success. Authority for remuneration is delegated to the senior management, with
oversight by the Board where appropriate.

The Group continues to invest in the career rewards available at all levels. In setting our remuneration policy we ensure
we operate in accordance with the law and that our approach adheres to principles of equality and fairness. The Board
is committed to the continued improvement in reducing the gender pay gap within the Group. Our functions keep
abreast of market trends and benchmark as appropriate.

Stakeholder relationships and engagement

The Chairman of the Bidco board acts as the primary interface between the Company and the Shareholders. Key
decisions are considered by the Board and discussed with key stakeholders, e.g. potential acquisitions and significant
operational matters.

Meaningful engagement with its customer base is core to the purpose of the Group, from the service given by
booksellers in shops to the central customer service functions and social media presence. The Board ensures that the
Group has the requisite policies in place to continually improve this relationship.

Employee engagement and consultations are conducted regularly through delegated authority, with email
communications sent daily and by means of the Company intranet. The Group continually seeks to improve this
engagement, notably through training and improving employee benefits.

The Group seeks to preserve excellent and collaborative relationships with its suppliers. It abides by agreed commercial
terms and works proactively to drive efficiencies to the mutual benefit of all parties.

The Group is committed to social responsibility and community engagement. As part of community investment, we
partner with local and national charities and actively encourage our employees to promote these partnerships.

There has been increasing interest from stakeholders as to how climate change will impact companies. As a retail
business, the Group’s activities have a relatively small impact on the environment when compared to companies that
operate in more resource intensive industries.
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Woates corporate governance statement (continued)

The Group has determined that the most significant future impacts from climate change on its operations will be from
energy prices as the Group and global economy transition to greener sources. The Group is committed to improving
its impact on climate change by adopting energy efficiency measures and has made considerable investment to improve
energy consumption. Environment and Sustainability working group has been created in 2023, involving employees
across the business, to address the issue of environmental sustainability. This group meet quarterly and engage with
employees around current environmental initiatives being carried out across the Group, provides a forum to share
best practice both internally and externally and drive forward collaboration and cooperation to drive forward a range
of environmental improvements across the business. Waterstones has also recently signed up the to the British Retail
Consortium's climate action roadmap and are working with the Booksellers Association of the United Kingdom &
Ireland around its Sustainable Bookselling Manifesto.

We consider that given the nature of the group’s activities and locations that physical climate change presents a
relatively low risk to the Group's future business operations. As such, no issues were identified that would impact the
carrying values of such assets or have any other impact on the financial statements.

Key performance indicators (“KPlIs”)

The Directors consider the key indicators of the performance of the Company, both financial and non-financial, to be
turnover, operating profit, adjusted EBITDA and adjusted EBITDA % (earnings before interest, tax, depreciation,
amortisation, foreign exchange movements on intercompany loans, management charge income and any one-off
exceptional costs) pre IFRS |16 lease accounting.

The KPIs are set out below:

2023 2022
£000 £000
Turnover 452,475 399,798
Operating profit 13,896 57,610
Adjusted EBITDA (Pre IFRS |6 lease accounting) 34,139 64,100
Adjusted EBITDA % (Pre IFRS 16 lease accounting) 1.5% 16.0%

A reconciliation of EBITDA to adjusted EBITDA (pre IFRS |6 lease accounting and exceptional items) detail is set out

below:
2023 2022
£000 £000
EBITDA 54,255 97,210
IFRS 16 and other adjustments (35,497) (35,970)
Exceptional items 15,381 2,860
Adjusted EBITDA (Pre IFRS 16 lease accounting and exceptional items) 34,139 64,100
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Principal risks and uncertainties

The principal risks relevant to the Company are identified as follows:

U
(i)

(iii)
(iv)

v)

(vi)
(vii)
(viii)
(i)
(x)

the longer term impact of Covid-19 on customers’ behaviour, particularly in relation to city centres;

the competitive nature of its markets, with particular emphasis on the e-commerce strength of Amazon and
developing methods of digital delivery of products and content;

the general sensitivity of customer confidence and spending in an economic downturn;

the ongoing risk that Brexit causes disruption and cost within the supply chain, and further damages consumer
confidence;

the seasonality of the business, with the reliance on Christmas performance for a high percentage of annual
profitability;

maintaining appropriate commercial agreements with key suppliers;

the reliability of the Group's and key suppliers’ supply chains and increasing costs;

a failure to sustain or protect the Company’s reputation and brand;

the maintenance and development of information technology and logistics systems; and

attracting, motivating and retaining key staff, with the ongoing impact of Brexit on retention of European staff
in the UK a particular consideration.

The Directors ensure that management of these principal risks and uncertainties is addressed in the preparation of,
and subsequent monitoring of performance against, Waterstones’ strategic and operational plans and policies.

On behalf of the Board

A>L .k

A ) Daunt

Director

Date: 18 October 2023
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors submit their report and audited financial statements for the 52 weeks ended 29 April 2023, which were
approved on behalf of the Board on 18 October 2023.

Directors

The names of the Directors who served throughout the period under review and up to and including the date of this
Report are shown below.

A J Daunt

K Skipper

E Hillyard (appointed 14 June 2022)
J} Molloy (resigned 14 june 2022)

Company Secretary

E Sullivan resigned as Company Secretary on |0 June 2022. F Johnston was appointed Company Secretary on
5 December 2022.

Directors’ liabilities

The Company has granted an indemnity to its Directors against liability in respect of proceedings brought by third
parties, subject to the conditions set out in section 234 of the Companies Act 2006. Such qualifying third party provision
remains in force as at the date of approving the Directors’ Report.

Dividends
No dividend was paid or declared during the period (2022: £nil).
Future developments

The Directors aim to continue the programme of investment and change to secure the future of Waterstones as a
quality bookselling business.

Subsequent events

On 6 July 2023, the Board agreed to start the process to hive across the assets and liabilities of W. & G. Foyle Limited
into the Company. This is expected to complete in late 2023 and is not expected to impact the financial statements for
the year ended 29 April 2023.

Financial risk factors

The Company’s exposure to, and management of, liquidity risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and foreign exchange risk
is set out in Note 25. Further information about liquidity risk is also included in the going concern section within the
Directors’ Report.

Employee policies

The Company operates a decentralised HR function. This provides greater accountability to employees and aids the
development of flexible and entrepreneurial book teams that can thrive under the competitive market pressures in
which the Company trades. Decentralised employee policies support a flexible local service, improving response times
and maximising the use of available resources, whilst minimising costs.

Employees are provided with information about the Company through the intranet site “Watson” where employees
are encouraged to present their questions, suggestions and views.

The Company is committed to maintaining and improving an equal and diverse workplace, free from discrimination on
the grounds of age, gender, nationality, religion, non-job related disability, sexual orientation or marital status. It also
aspires to be an employer of choice and aims to provide opportunities for individuals to develop and contribute through
employee forums and focus groups.

Donations

The Company made charitable donations of £819,000 (2022: £284,000) in the period under review. It is Company
policy not to make donations to political parties and therefore no political donations were made.
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Employee policies (continued)
Disabled employees

The Company gives full consideration to applications for employment from disabled persons where the candidate’s
particular aptitudes and abilities are consistent with adequately meeting the requirements of the job. Opportunities are
available to disabled employees for training, career development and promotion. Where existing employees become

disabled, it is the Company’s policy to provide continuing employment wherever practicable in the same or an
alternative position and to provide appropriate training to achieve this aim.

Streamlined energy and carbon reporting (“SECR")

Disclosures relating to energy and carbon emissions as required by The Companies (Directors’ Report) and Limited
Liability Partnerships (Energy and Carbon Report) Regulations 2018 (SI 2018/1155) are included within Book Retail
Midco Limited’s financial statements for the period ended 29 April 2023.

Auditors

The Directors who were members of the Board at the time of approving the Directors’ Report are listed on page |.
Having made enquiries of fellow Directors and of the Company’s auditors, each of these Directors confirms that:

(i) to the best of each Director’s knowledge and belief, there is no information relevant to the preparation of
their report of which the Company’s auditors are unaware; and

(i) each Director has taken all steps a Director might reasonably be expected to have taken to be aware of
relevant audit information and to establish that the Company’s auditors are aware of that information.

A statement of the Directors’ responsibilities for the financial statements can be found on page 9, which is deemed to
be incorporated by reference in (and shall be deemed to form part of) this report.

Ernst & Young LLP have indicated their willingness to be reappointed for another term and appropriate arrangements
have been put in place for them to be deemed reappointed in the absence of an AGM.

Going concern

The Directors have reviewed cashflow forecasts for the period to 28 December 2024, (“the going concern period”),
along with calculations showing the forecast position in relation to the financial covenant associated with the debt
facilities of a £78m loan together with a £25m revolving credit facility (undrawn as at 29 April 2023) which Book Retail
Bidco Limited (parent) holds with Elliott Funds to which the Company is a cross guarantor (see Note 31). As at 2
September 2023, cash balances held were £20.6m. In the years ended April 2022 and April 2023, cash was sufficient to
meet liabilities as they fell due and the Group did not require any additional funding.

The base forecast assumes Company sales for most stores to improve on pre-Covid levels in the year ending April
2024 with further sales improvement in the following year, along with growth in online sales throughout the going
concern period. For the going concern period, under the base forecast, the Group would have sufficient cash to meet
their liabilities as they fall due and will not breach the covenant associated with the debt. In August 2023, an extension
of the group's borrowing facilities was agreed with these now repayable in May and August 2025. All other terms of
these loans remain unchanged.

Severe and plausible downside scenarios have been modelled to understand the impact on the liquidity of the Company.
The scenarios reviewed include a severe and highly unlikely scenario, where Company sales are down 15% on base
budget where liquidity remained sufficient to meet liabilities as they fall due. EBITDA within a 12 month period prior
to a quarterly testing date would have to fall by more than £40m against that forecast within the going concern period
for the covenant to be breached, a situation which was not experienced even when the Group was impacted by Covid-
19. In addition, a reverse stress test has been modelled and Waterstones Booksellers Limited sales would need to
decline by over 20% compared to base budget to require additional financing or to undertake mitigating actions wholly
within management’s control. This decline is significantly below current performance and, when considered alongside
the mitigating actions within management’s control that would be available, is considered implausible.
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Going concern (continued)

The level of uncertainty brought on by Covid-19 has dwindled, with future lockdowns judged to be improbable. The
most significant further impacts on the Group may be on sales and overheads in relation to inflationary pressures,
including increased energy costs, along with any potential reductions in consumer spending. Several key economic
factors have also been considered as part of the going concern review, including rising purchase and employment costs,
exchange rate and interest rate fluctuations, the current conflict in Ukraine and longer-term consumer spending
patterns, with no significant impact expected on the liquidity of the business.

The Directors have concluded from their analysis of current performance, forecasts, cashflows and scenario tests that
the Company will continue to trade at levels which mean that they are able to meet their liabilities as they fall due
throughout the going concern period and that the Group will maintain sufficient headroom in relation to the debt
covenant.

For these reasons, the accounts are prepared on a going concern basis.

On behalf of the Board

A&L - F

A ) Daunt
Director
Date: 18 October 2023
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Strategic Report, the Directors’ Report and the Financial Statements
in accordance with applicable United Kingdom law and regulations. Company law requires the Directors to prepare
financial statements for each financial period. Under that law, the Directors are required to prepare financial statements
in accordance with UK adopted International Accounting Standards in conformity with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006.

Under Company Law the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and the financial performance and the cash flows of the
Company for that period. In preparing those financial statements, the Directors are required to:

() select suitable accounting policies in accordance with IAS 8: Accounting Policies, Changes in Estimates and
then apply them consistently;

(ii) present information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and
understandable information;

(iii) provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in accordance with
International Accounting Standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 is
insufficient to enable users to understand the impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions
on the entity’s financial position and financial performance;

(iv) state that the Company has complied with International Accounting Standards in conformity with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the
financial statements;

(v) make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and

(vi) prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is appropriate to presume that the
Company will not continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and
enable them to ensure that the Company financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other irregularities.

On behalf of the Board

N T Ml

A ) Daunt E Hillyard
Director Director
Date: 18 October 2023 : Date: 18 October 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF

WATERSTONES BOOKSELLERS LIMITED

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Waterstones Booksellers Limited for the period ended 29 April 2023 which
comprises the Income Statement, the Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Balance Sheet, the Statement of
Changes In Equity, the Cash Flow Statement and the related notes | to 33, including a summary of significant accounting

policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and UK adopted
international accounting standards.

In our opinion, the financial statements:
e give a true and fair view of the company’s affairs as at 29 April 2023 and of its profit for the period then ended;
e have been properly prepared in accordance with UK adopted international accounting standards; and
e have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report.We are independent of the company in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions related to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate. We draw attention to note 2 in the financial statements,
which describes the impact of current macro-economic matters on the Company.

The Company prepares its financial statements on a going concern basis as the directors consider there to be no
plausible scenario that could result in the Company breaching covenants or having insufficient liquidity to continue as a
going concern for the period through to 28 December 2024 (“the going concern period”). Book Retail Bidco Limited
(‘Bidco’) is the immediate parent of the Company. Bidco has a financing arrangement including an undrawn revolving
credit facility and a debt facility of £77.9m as at 29 April 2023.These facilities have financial covenants attached. In August
2023, an extension of Bidco’s borrowing facilities was agreed with these now repayable in May and August 2025,
respectively. These facilities have been made available to the Company.

Our evaluation of the directors’ assessment of the Company’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting included the following procedures:

e  Obraining the directors’ documented going concern assessment for the Company covering the going
concern period to 28 December 2024, which includes details of facilities available, the results of
management’s downside sensitivity scenarios and reverse stress testing and their assessment of the current
macro economic pressures including but not limited to the cost of living crisis, rising purchase and
employment costs, exchange rate and interest rate fluctuations, the impact of the Ukraine conflict on energy
prices and wider supply chains and consumer spending expectations to understand their key assumptions
applied to the cash flow forecasts.

e  Obtaining the agreements in respect of Bidco’s financing arrangements to confirm the extension of the
maturity of the facilities and covenants that are required to be met within the going concern assessment
period.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
WATERSTONES BOOKSELLERS LIMITED (CONTINUED)

Conclusions related to going concern (continued)

e  Obtaining the management’s financial forecast for the period to 28 December 2024 and checking its
arithmetical accuracy and integrity.

e Challenging the forecasts and assumptions made, such as comparing the expected sales growth rates against
current results as well as pre-Covid- 19 given period since shops have been fully open. These challenges primarily
included assessing consumer confidence and spending patterns given the current macro—economic pressures
as listed above and considering any contra-indicators which could supress future sales, such as supply chain
issues and decreases in disposable income.

e Assessing the achievability of the revenue projections in management’s scenarios in relation to the Company’s
current performance, comparison with historical forecasting accuracy and consideration of whether these
remain achievable given other the macro-economic pressures listed above.

e  Evaluating the results of management’s reverse stress test scenario and assessing whether the changes to key
assumptions which resulted in the Company exhausting all of its liquidity or breaching covenants were plausible.

*  Assessing mitigating factors available to management should downside scenarios be worse than anticipated,
including challenging whether these are realistic and within management’s control.

¢ Enquiring of management as to their knowledge of events or conditions beyond the period of their assessment
that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern and compared their
response to forecast market conditions and other information acquired through our audit that could impact
liquidity, such as the profiling of debt repayments.

e Reading the going concern disclosures in the financial statements in order to assess they are appropriate and
in conformity with the relevant standards.

Based on the work we performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern for
the period to 28 December 2024.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant
sections of this report. However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this statement is not a
guarantee as to the company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information contained within the annual
report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise
explicitly stated in this report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are
required to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of the other information, we are
required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
WATERSTONES BOOKSELLERS LIMITED (CONTINUED)

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

e the information given in the strategic report and the directors’ report for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

e the strategic report and directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.
Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the course of the audit,
we have not identified material misstatements in the strategic report or directors’ report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires
us to report to you if, in our opinion:

e adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us; or

¢ the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

e certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

¢ we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit
Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement set out on page 10 the directors are responsible for
the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the company’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Explanation as to what extent the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line
with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect irregularities, including fraud. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or intentional misrepresentations, or through collusion. The extent to
which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below. However, the primary
responsibility for the prevention and detection of fraud rests with both those charged with governance of the entity
and management.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
WATERSTONES BOOKSELLERS LIMITED (CONTINUED)

Explanation as to what extent the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud
(continued)

e  We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that are applicable to the Company and
determined that the most significant are frameworks which are directly relevant to specific assertions in the
financial statements are those that relate to the reporting framework (IFRS, the Companies Act 2006 and The
Wates Corporate Governance Principles for Large Private Companies) and compliance with the relevant direct
and indirect tax regulation in the countries which the Company operates. In addition, we concluded that there
are certain significant laws and regulations which may have an effect on the determination of the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements being those laws and regulations relating to its operations including
health and safety, employee matters and data protection regulations.

e We understood how Waterstones Booksellers Limited is complying with those frameworks by making
enquiries of management, primarily those responsible for legal and compliance procedures. We corroborated
our enquiries through our review of Board minutes.

e  We assessed the susceptibility of the Company’s financial statements to material misstatement, including how
fraud might occur by meeting with management from various parts of the business to understand where they
considered there was susceptibility to fraud. We also considered performance targets and their influence on
efforts made by management.We considered the programmes and controls that the Company has established
to address risks identified, or that otherwise prevent, deter and detect fraud; and how senior management
monitors those programmes and controls. Where the risk was considered to be higher, we performed audit
procedures to address each identified fraud risk. These procedures included testing manual journals and
challenging the assumptions in relation to revenue recognition for gift cards and loyalty schemes and were
designed to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements were free from fraud or error.

e Based on this understanding we designed our audit procedures to identify non-compliance with such laws and
regulations. Our procedures involved journal entry testing, with a focus on manual journals and journals
indicating large or unusual transactions based on our understanding of the business. Additionally, we undertook
a review of payments to detect unrecorded liabilities. Ve also reviewed reports from management’s tax and
legal advisors and involved EY internal specialists to ensure our audit procedures considered laws and
regulations in relation to certain tax matters.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting
Council’s website at https://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s
report. :

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s
members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

DocuSigned by:

frwst & (/{owu{) Up

3FBACE7DD4154ES...

Helen McLeod-Jones (Senior statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor
Birmingham

18 october 2023
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WATERSTONES BOOKSELLERS LIMITED REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2023
Company Number: 00610095

INCOME STATEMENT
For the 52 weeks ended 29 April 2023 and the 53 weeks ended 30 April 2022

Before Exceptional

exceptional items items Total

2023 2023 2023

Notes £000 £000 £000

Revenue 3 452,475 - 452,475
Cost of sales (401,626) (15,381) (417,007)
Gross profit 50,849 (15,381) 35,468
Administrative expenses (21,572) - (21,572)
Operating profit 4 29,277 (15,381) 13,896

Dividend income 1,711 - 1,741
Finance costs 9 (7,821) - (7,821)
Finance income 10 3,433 - 3,433
Profit before taxation 26,600 (15,381) 1,219
Income tax (expense) / credit (}] (2,206) 2,998 792

Profit for the period attributable to equity
holders of the Company 24,394 (12,383) 12,011
Before Exceptional

exceptional items items Total

2022 2022 2022

Notes £0600 £000 £000

Revenue 3 399,798 - 399,798
Cost of sales (323,402) (2,860) (326,262)
Gross profit 76,396 (2,860) 73,536
Administrative expenses (15,926) - (15,926)
Operating profit 4 60,470 (2,860) 57,610
Finance costs 9 (9,628) - (9,628)
Finance income 10 2,640 - 2,640
Profit before taxation 53,482 (2,860) 50,622
Income tax (expense) / credit I (9,081) 543 (8,538)

Profit for the period attributable to equity

holders of the Company 44,401 - (2,317) 42,084

These financial statements are made up to the Saturday on or immediately preceding 30 April each year. Consequently,
the financial statements for the current period cover the 52 weeks ended 29 April 2023 and the comparative period
covered the 53 weeks ended 30 April 2022.

For details of the exceptional items included above, see Note 5.

All results in the current and prior period relate to continuing activities.
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WATERSTONES BOOKSELLERS LIMITED REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2023
Company Number: 00610095 '

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the 52 weeks ended 29 April 2023 and the 53 weeks ended 30 April 2022

2023 2022
£000 £000
Profit for the period 12,011 42,084
Total comprehensive income for the period 12,011 42,084
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WATERSTONES BOOKSELLERS LIMITED REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2023
Company Number: 00610095

BALANCE SHEET

As at As at
29 April 2023 30 April 2022
Notes £000 £000
Assets
Non-current assets
Plant and equipment 12 37,506 33,581
Intangible assets 13 2,562 627
Right-of-use assets . 24 107,265 105,463
Deferred tax asset 11 7,940 5,634
Investments in subsidiaries 14 27,261 27,261
Trade and other receivables 17 61,549 51,676
244,083 224,242
Current assets
Inventories 15 . 86,496 66,120
Right of return assets 16 148 137
Trade and other receivables 17 32,107 24,439
Cash at bank and on hand 18 24,980 58,906
143,731 149,602
Total assets 387,814 373,844
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 19 (96,369) (93,746)
(96,369) (93,746)
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 21 (73,089) (67,216)
Amounts due to group undertakings 22 (55,356) (52,369)
Contract liabilities 23 (23,935) (21,500)
Income tax payable (366) (1,664)
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 19 (28,090) (31,529)
Provisions 20 (179) (354)
) (181,015) (174,632)
Total liabilities (277,384) (268,378)
Net assets 110,430 105,466
Equity
Issued share capital 27 71,014 71,014
Merger reserve 27 (7,047) -
Retained profits 46,463 34,452
Total equity 110,430 105,466
The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 18 October 2023 and were signed on its behalf
by:
AN e 2
A} Daunt : E Hillyard
Director Director
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WATERSTONES BOOKSELLERS LIMITED REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2023
Company Number: 00610095

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the 52 weeks ended 29 April 2023 and 53 weeks ended 30 April 2022

(Accumulated

Issued losses)/
share capital Merger reserve retained profits Total

Notes . £000 £000 £000 £000
At 24 April 2021 71,014 - (7,632) 63,382
Profit for the period - - 42,084 42,084
Total comprehensive income - - 42,084 42,084
At 30 April 2022 71,014 - 34,452 105,466
Profit for the period - - 12,011 12,011
IFRS conversion for acquired 32 - (62) - (62)
entity
Impairment of investment
following transfer of trade and . 27 - (6,985) - (6,985)
assets
Total comprehensive - (7,047) 12,011 4,964
(expense) / income
At 29 April 2023 71,014 (7,047) 46,463 110,430
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WATERSTONES BOOKSELLERS LIMITED

Company Number: 00610095

REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2023

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

For the 52 weeks ended 29 April 2023 and 53 weeks ended 30 April 2022

2023 2022
Notes £000 £000
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax 11,219 50,622
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash
flows:
Depreciation and impairment of plant and equipment 12 9,837 9,300
Depreciation and impairment of right-of-use assets 24 31,671 30,659
Amortisation of intangible assets 13 705 322
(Profit)/ loss on disposal of plant and equipment, ’
intangible assets and right-of-use assets 4 (105) 41
Net foreign exchange loss/(gain) 4 1,351 (527)
Finance income 10 3,433) (2,640)
Finance costs 9 7,821 9,628
Movement in provisions (191) (409)
Non-cash reduction in lease liabilities recognised in the
income statement (420) (3,446)
Dividend income ,711) -
Working capital adjustments:
Increase in trade and other receivables and right of
return assets (17,663) (23,054)
Increase in inventories (16,059) (324)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables and
contract liabilities (761) 33,506
Decrease in amount due to group undertakings - (25,000)
22,261 78,678
Income tax paid (1,684) (3,404)
Net cash flows from operating activities 20,577 75,274
Investing activities
Purchase of plant and equipment (13,584) .(6,954)
Purchase of intangible fixed assets (410) (105)
Cash flows arising from the inception of new lease
contracts included in right-of-use assets (379) (135)
Interest received 88 -
Net cash flows used in investing activities (14,285) (7,194)
Financing activities
Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities (33,992) (38,999)
Interest paid (7,040) . (8,774)
Net cash flows used in financing activities (41,032) (47,773)
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash
equivalents (34,740) 20,307
Opening cash and cash equivalents 58,906 38611
Cash from transfer of assets and liabilities 1,312 -
Net foreign exchange difference (498) (12)
Closing cash and cash equivalents 18 24,980 58,906
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 WATERSTONES BOOKSELLERS LIMITED REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2023
Company Number: 00610095

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

I. Corporate information

The financial statements of Waterstones Booksellers Limited (the “Company”) for the 52 week period ended
29 April 2023 were authorised for issue by the Board on 18 October 2023. The Company is a limited company,
incorporated and resident in England and Wales. Its registered office is at 203-206 Piccadilly, London, W] 9HD.

2.  Accounting policies
Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Accounting Standards in conformity with
the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 as they apply to the financial statements of the Company for the 52
weeks ended 29 April 2023.

The financial statements are made up to the Saturday on or immediately preceding 30 April each year. Consequently,
the financial statements for the current period cover the 52 weeks ended 29 April 2023, whilst the comparative period
covered the 53 weeks ended 30 April 2022. The financial statements are prepared in accordance with applicable
accounting standards and specifically in accordance with the accounting policies set out below.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis. The financial statements are prepared in pounds
sterling and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand (£000) except when otherwise indicated.

The Company is exempt from preparing group financial statements as it is itself a subsidiary undertaking under Section
400 of the Companies Act 2006. These financial statements therefore present information about the Company as an
individual undertaking and not about its group.

The Company’s business activities, together with the factors likely to affect its future development and position, are
set out in the business review section of the Strategic Report on page 2, the principal risks and uncertainties section of
the Strategic Report on page 5 and the financial risk section of the Directors’ Report on page 6.

Going concern

The Directors have reviewed cashflow forecasts for the period to 28 December 2024, (“the going concern period”),
along with calculations showing the forecast position in relation to the financial covenant associated with the debt
facilities of a £78m loan together with a £25m revolving credit facility (undrawn as at 29 April 2023) which Book Retail
Bidco Limited (parent) holds with Elliott Funds to which the Company is a cross guarantor (see Note 31). As at 2
September 2023, cash balances held were £20.6m. In the years ended April 2022 and April 2023, cash was sufficient to
meet liabilities as they fell due and the Group did not require any additional funding.

The base forecast assumes Company sales for most stores to improve on pre-Covid levels in the year ending April
2024 with further sales improvement in the following year, along with growth in online sales throughout the going
concern period. For the going concern period, under the base forecast, the Group would have sufficient cash to meet
their liabilities as they fall due and will not breach the covenant associated with the debt. In August 2023, an extension
of the group’s borrowing facilities was agreed with these now repayable in May and August 2025. All other terms of
these loans remain unchanged.

Severe and plausible downside scenarios have been modelled to understand the impact on the liquidity of the Company.
The scenarios reviewed include a severe and highly unlikely scenario, where Company sales are down 15% on base
budget where liquidity remained sufficient to meet liabilities as they fall due. EBITDA within a 12 month period prior
to a quarterly testing date would have to fall by more than £40m against that forecast within the going concern period
for the covenant to be breached, a situation which was not experienced even when the Group was impacted by Covid-
19. In addition, a reverse stress test has been modelled and Waterstones Booksellers Limited sales would need to
decline by over 20% compared to base budget to require additional financing or to undertake mitigating actions wholly
within management’s control. This decline is significantly below current performance and, when considered alongside
the mitigating actions within management’s control that would be available, is considered implausible.
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WATERSTONES BOOKSELLERS LIMITED REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2023
Company Number: 00610095

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2. Accounting policies (continued)
Basis of preparation (continued)

The level of uncertainty brought on by Covid-19 has dwindled, with future lockdowns judged to be improbable. The
most significant further impacts on the Group may be on sales and overheads in relation to inflationary pressures,
including increased energy costs, along with any potential reductions in consumer spending. Several key economic
factors have also been considered as part of the going concern review, including rising purchase and employment costs,
exchange rate and interest rate fluctuations, the current conflict in Ukraine and longer-term consumer spending
patterns, with no significant impact expected on the liquidity of the business.

The Directors have concluded from their analysis of current performance, forecasts, cashflows and scenario tests that
the Company will continue to trade at levels which mean that they are able to meet their liabilities as they fall due
throughout the going concern period and that the Group will maintain sufficient headroom in relation to the debt
covenant.

For these reasons, the accounts are prepared on a going concern basis.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiary undertakings are carried at cost, net of impairment losses, if any.
Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position based on current/non-current
classification. An asset is current when it is:

— expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle;

—  held primarily for the purpose of trading;

— expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or

— cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period. _

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

— itis expected fo be settled in the normal operating cycle;

— itis held primarily for the purpose of trading;

— it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

— there is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period.

~ The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
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WATERSTONES BOOKSELLERS LIMITED REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2023
Company Number: 00610095

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2, Accounting policies (continued)
Revenue

Revenue represents the value of the consideration received or receivable for goods sold to customers, net of discounts
given and returns expected, excluding value added tax (“VAT") and similar sales-related taxes. It includes book, related
product and coffee shop income.

Sales of goods

The sale of goods to customers in store represents the majority of the Company’s revenue. For goods sold in store,
revenue is recognised at the point of sale. For goods sold on the internet, revenue is recognised on delivery to/
collection by the customer when the customer is deemed to have control of the goods. Deferred revenue relating to
goods in transit at the period end is recognised as a contract liability.

A refund liability is recognised for expected refunds due to customers arising from returns and a right of return asset
recognised for the Company’s right to recover the goods from the customer. Returns are estimated based on expected
value.

Gift cards

Sales of gift cards are treated as contract liabilities with the revenue recognised when the gift cards are redeemed. The
Company recognises breakage, being the amount attributable to customers’ rights to future goods that is expected will
never be exercised, in proportion to customers’ pattern of redemption.

Loyalty schemes

The Company issues loyalty rewards to customers when they purchase goods which entitles them to a future discount.
The loyalty points give rise to a separate performance obligation as they provide a material right to the customer. A
portion of the transaction price is allocated to the loyalty points awarded to customers based on their relative stand-
alone selling price and recognised as a contract liability until the points are redeemed. Revenue is recognised upon
redemption of loyalty points by the customer.

When estimating the stand-alone selling price of the loyalty points, the Company considers the likelihood that the
customer will redeem the points. The Company annually reviews the estimates of the points that will be redeemed and
any adjustments to the contract liability balance are charged against revenue.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attached
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as a reduction in the
related expense on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate,
are expensed.

In the prior period, government grants have been received to support certain expenses during the Covid-19 pandemic.
All conditions attached to the government grants were complied with before recognition in the income statement. The
UK Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme ("furlough”) operates on a claims basis, where cash is received after the expense
has been incurred. The amount received under this scheme has been netted off the relevant wages and salaries expense
within the income statement.

22



DocusSign Envelope ID: F1A01DFC-D2F5-4419-9C7C-24910D85BF04

WATERSTONES BOOKSELLERS LIMITED REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2023
Company Number: 00610095

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2. Accounting policies (continued)
Taxes
Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to, the
taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date in the countries where the Company operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised directly in other comprehensive income and equity is recognised in
other comprehensive income or equity and not in the income statement. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and
establishes provisions where appropriate.

The Company offsets current income tax assets and current income tax liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable
right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the current income tax assets and current income tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different
taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant amounts of income tax liabilities or assets
are expected to be settled or recovered.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

— when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; or

— ' in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in
joint arrangements, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits
and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused
tax losses can be utilised, except:

— when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; or

— in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are
recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised directly in other comprehensive income and equity is recognised in other
comprehensive income or equity and not in the income statement.
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WATERSTONES BOOKSELLERS LIMITED REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2023
Company Number: 00610095

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2. Accounting policies (continued)
Taxes (continued)
Deferred tax (continued)

Tax benefits acquired as part of a business combination, but not satisfying the criteria for separate recognition at that
date, are recognised subsequently if new information about facts and circumstances change. The adjustment is either
treated as a reduction in goodwill (as long as it does not exceed goodwill) if it was incurred during the measurement
period or recognised in the income statement.

The Company offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend
either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously, in each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to
be settled or recovered.

Sales tax
Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of sales tax, except:

— when the sales tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in
which case, the sales tax is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item;
or

— when receivables and payables are stated with the amount of sales tax included.

The net amount of sales tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables
or payables in the balance sheet.
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WATERSTONES BOOKSELLERS LIMITED REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2023
Company Number: 00610095

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2. Accounting policies (continued)
Foreign currency translation
Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at their respective functional currency spot rates at the date
the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of
exchange at the reporting date.

Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in the income statement.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on
translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on
the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss are also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).

Plant and equipment

The capitalised cost of plant and equipment includes only those costs that are directly attributable to bringing an asset
to its working condition for its intended use.

Plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation of plant and equipment is calculated on cost, at rates estimated to write off the cost, less the estimated
residual value, of the relevant assets by equal annual amounts over their estimated useful lives.

The annual rates used are:
Plant and equipment 10 to 33'13%

An item of plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or when
no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included
in the income statement when the asset is derecognised.

Useful lives and residual values are reviewed annually and where adjustments are required these are made prospectively.
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WATERSTONES BOOKSELLERS LIMITED REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2023
Company Number: 00610095

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2. Accounting policies (continued)
Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains a lease. That is, if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases. The Company recognises lease
liabilities representing obligations to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the
underlying assets.

Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset
is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
and adjusted for any re-measurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease
liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less
any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of
lease payments to be made over the most reasonably certain lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments
(including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the
exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for
terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate.

Where lease payments are inclusive of other charges, for example, service charges, the Company has elected to
combine the charge allocated to the non-lease component with the lease component and account for the combined
charge as a single lease component.

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses in the period in which
the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the
lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is re-measured if there is a modification, a
change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in
an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the
underlying asset.

For rent concessions arising as a direct result of the pandemic, the Company has elected not to assess whether eligible
rent concessions are lease modifications. Instead, the concessions have been accounted for as variable lease payments
in the period in which the concession is agreed provided that all of the following conditions are met:

— the change in lease payments results in revised consideration for the lease that is substantially the same as, or less
than, the consideration for the lease immediately preceding the change;

— any reduction in lease payments affects only payments originally due on or before 30 June 2022; and

— there is no substantive change to other terms and conditions of the lease.

The Company’s lease liabilities are included in interest-bearing loans and borrowings (see Notes 19 and 24).
Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an
asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease
terms. Contingent rents are recognised in the income statement in the period in which they are earned.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2. Accounting policies (continued)
Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost.

Where computer software is not an integral part of a related item of computer hardware, the software is treated as
an intangible asset. Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on the basis of costs incurred to acquire and
bring into use the specific software. An internally generated intangible asset arising from the Company's development
of computer systems (including websites) is recognised only if the costs are directly associated with the production of
identifiable and unique software products which are controlled by the Company and it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the Company. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value at
the date of acquisition.

Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over their useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever
there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method
for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the
expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are
considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting
estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the income statement in the
expense category that is consistent with the function of the intangible assets.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually, either individually
or at the cash-generating unit (*CGU”) level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine
whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made
on a prospective basis. An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control)
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising upon derecognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the statement of profit or loss.

Website costs and software costs are determined to have a finite useful life and are amortised over their estimated
useful lives using the straight line method.

The annual rates used are:
Website and software costs 20%
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value on a first-in, first-out basis. Net realisable value is
based on estimated selling prices. Historical sales performance statistics are used in the formulation of these
judgements.

A proportion of costs incurred by the central distribution centre are capitalised into inventory to reflect the cost of
handling and delivering inventory to the various locations across the shop portfolio.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2. Accounting policies (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Further disclosures relating to impairment of non-financial assets are also provided in the following notes:
— Disclosures for significant assumptions - Note 2

—  Plant and equipment - Note 12

— Intangible assets - Note |3

— Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives - Note 13

— Right-of-use assets — Note 24

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or CGU:s fair value, less costs of disposal
and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of
an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its
recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In
determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions
can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared
separately for each of the Company’s CGUSs to which the individual assets are allocated.

Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication
that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company
estimates the asset's or CGUs recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there
has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss
was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount,
nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior periods. Such reversal is recognised in the income statement.

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of each CGU (or group of CGUs) to which
the goodwill relates. When the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than its carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognised. Impairment losses relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in future periods.

Cash and short-term deposits

Cash and short-term deposits in the statement of financial position comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with a maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2. Accounting policies (continued)
Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material,
provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.
When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Pension costs

The Company operates a defined contribution pension scheme. Contributions to the scheme are charged in the income
statement as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the scheme.

Insurance

During the pandemic, and in line with other retailers, the Company claimed for compensation related to business
interruption under its insurance policies. This compensation has been recognised as a credit within Cost of sales only
where there is an unconditional contractual right to receive such amounts.

Exceptional items

The Company presents as exceptional items, on the face of the income statement, those material items of income and
expense which, because of the nature, expected infrequency or quantum of the events giving rise to them, merit
separate presentation. This allows shareholders to understand the elements of underlying financial performance in the
period, so as to facilitate comparison with prior periods and to assess trends in underlying financial performance.
Exceptional items recognised in arriving at operating profit include (but are not limited to) those costs associated with
impairment losses, reversal of impairments and the direct and indirect costs associated with implementing new systems
within a cloud computing arrangement.

Financial liabilities
The Company's financial liabilities comprise trade and other payables and loans and borrowings.
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of
directly attributable transaction costs,

Subsequent measurement

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the effective interest method. The effective interest method amortisation is included as finance costs
in the income statement.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2.

Accounting policies (continued)

Judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
amounts reported for assets and liabilities as at the balance sheet date and the amounts reported for revenues and
expenses during the period. The nature of estimation means that actual outcomes could differ from those estimates.

Significant judgements made in the preparation of the financial statements are set out below:

Revenue recognition in respect of customer loyalty schemes - revenue recognition is based on the fair value of
loyalty rewards, the calculation of which is based on expected redemption rates. This calculation requires
judgements to be made regarding future redemption rates, however, the Company launched a new loyalty scheme
on 20 August 2018 and therefore there is limited historical information available. As a result, expected redemption
rates are based on current run rates and are regularly monitored.

Lease accounting — incremental borrowing rates and expected lease terms are estimated and reviewed each year.
This estimation requires judgements to be made about the expected lease length taking into account the likelihood
of exercising termination and extension options.

Impairment of plant and equipment, intangible assets, right-of-use assets and investments - plant and equipment,
intangible assets, right-of-use assets and investments are reviewed for impairment / reversal of an impairment if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable or that a previously
recognised impairment loss may have reversed. When a review for impairment / reversal of an impairment is
conducted, the recoverable amount of an asset or a CGU is based on the value in use calculation prepared using
management assumptions and estimates. Key assumptions for the value in use calculation include revenue, margin,
operating costs and discount rate. ldentification of a CGU involves significant judgement regarding largely
independent cash flows and geographical proximity of stores.

Trade and other payables - given the nature of the Company's operations, liabilities for indirect taxes may arise of
which some elements may need to be estimated. These are included within "Trade and other payables”. Whilst it
is clear the Company has a liability, the exact economic outflow may not be certain. The range of outcomes is not
considered material.

Inventory valuation — inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value, which includes, where
necessary, provisions for slow moving and obsolete inventory. Calculation of provisions requires judgements to be
made regarding future customer demand, future sales prices and inventory loss trends. Historical sales performance
statistics are used in the formulation of these judgements.

Taxation — calculation of the Company’s total tax charge requires a degree of estimation and judgement in respect
of the probability that future taxable profits will be available to support the recognition of deferred tax assets.
Where the final outcome of these tax matters differs from the amounts that were initially recorded, the tax charge
and deferred tax provisions will be impacted.

Provisions — provisions for store closures are estimates and the actual costs and timing of future cash flows are
dependent on future events. Expectations are revised in each period, with any difference accounted for in the
period in which the revision is made. Key assumptions for provisions are those regarding future costs, the timing
of those costs and discount rates.

The only key source of estimation uncertainty that has a significant risk of causing material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial period is the expected redemption rate for customer loyalty
schemes.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2,

Accounting policies (continued)

New accounting standards

The Company has adopted the following amended accounting standards which were mandatory for the first time for
the financial period ending 29 April 2023. They have no material impact on the Company.

IFRS 3 Business Combinations: Amendments updating a reference to the conceptual framework, effective for annual
periods beginning on or after | January 2022;

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: Disclosures: Amendments resulting from Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards
2018-2020 (fees in the 10 percent’ test for derecognition of financial liabilities), effective for annual periods
beginning on or after | January 2022;

IAS 16 Property, plant and equipment: Amendments prohibiting a company from deducting from the cost of
property, plant and equipment amounts received from selling items produced while the company is preparing the
asset for its intended use, effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2022; and

IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets: Amendments regarding the costs to include when
assessing whether a contract is onerous, effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2022.

The Company has not adopted early the requirements of the following accounting standards and interpretations, which
have an effective date after the start date of these financial statements.

IFRS 16 Leases: Amendments to clarify how a seller-lessee subsequently measures sale and leaseback transactions;
effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2024;

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts: Original issue and Amendments to address concerns and implementation challenges
that were identified after IFRS 17 was published, effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2023;

IAS | Presentation of financial statements: Amendments regarding the classification of liabilities, effective for annual
periods beginning on or after | January 2024;

IAS | Presentation of financial statements: Amendments regarding the disclosure of accounting policies, effective
for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2023;

IAS | Presentation of financial statements: Amendments regarding the classification of debt with covenants, effective
for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2024;

IAS 8 Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and errors: Amendments regarding the definition of
accounting estimates, effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2023; and

IAS 12 Income Taxes: Amendments resulting from deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising from a single
transaction, effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2023.

The Company intends to adopt these standards when they become effective.

The Directors do not anticipate that the adoption of these standards and interpretations will have a material impact
on the Company’s financial statements.

31



DocuSign Envelope ID: F1A01DFC-D2F5-4419-9C7C-24910D85BF04

WATERSTONES BOOKSELLERS LIMITED

Company Number: 00610095

REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2023
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3. Revenue

Revenue disclosed in the income statement is analysed as follows:

2023 2022
£000 £000
Sale of goods — UK 441,739 396,478
Sale of goods — rest of world 10,736 3,320
452,475 399,798
4. Operating profit
Operating profit is stated after charging / (crediting):
2023 2022
£000 £000
Depreciation and amortisation (see Notes 12, |3 and 24) 40,359 39,600
Impairment charges (see Notes 12 and 24) 1,854 681
(Profit) / loss on disposal of plant and equipment, intangible assets and
right-of-use assets (105) 4|
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense 219,705 178,604
Increase / (decrease) in inventory provision 803 (113)
Net foreign exchange loss / (gain) 1,351 (527)

In the prior year, in line with other retail companies, the Company utilised the government support available in the UK
including Job Retention Scheme, Business rates relief and Government business grants. None was utilised in the current

year (2022: £7,217,000).
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5. Exceptional items

Recognised in arriving at operating profit:

2023 2022
£000 £000

Included in Cost of sales:
Impairment of right-of-use assets and tangible fixed assets 1,854 681
Direct and indirect costs attributable to systems implementation 13,527 2,179
15,381 2,860

Further details of the exceptional impairment charges are provided in Note 12 and 24.

Direct and indirect costs attributable to systems implementation relate to the additional costs of implementing a
warehouse management system.

A tax credit of £2,998,000 (2022: £543,000) arose in respect of the exceptional charges.
The cash flow impact of these exceptional costs is a cash outflow of £13,604,000 (2022: £2,015,000) from operating

activities.

6. Fees to auditors

2023 2022
£000 £000
441 326

Audit of the financial statements
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

7. Directors’ emoluments

2023 2022
£000 £000
Directors’ emoluments 598 682
Company contributions to defined contribution pension schemes 47 47
645 729

Three (2022: two) of the Directors are accruing benefits under the Company’s defined contribution pension
arrangements.

"The amounts in respect of the highest paid Director were as follows:

2023 2022
£000 £000
Directors’ emoluments 276 270
Company contributions to defined contribution pension schemes 27 26
303 296

The amounts above exclude amounts recharged to other group companies for services provided to other group
companies.

8. Employee costs

2023 2022
£000 £000
Employee costs, including Directors’ emoluments:
Wages and salaries 71,770 56,330
Social security costs 6,414 4,836
Other pension costs 3,180 2,378
81,364 63,544
2023 2022
No. No.
Monthly average number of people employed by the Company:
Stores 3,099 2,728
Head office 312 222
3,411 2,950
9. Finance costs
2023 2022
£000 £000
Interest on lease liabilities (see Note 24) 6,913 7,274
Interest payable to group undertakings 896 2,354
Other interest payable 12 -
7,821 9,628
10. Finance income
2023 2022
£000 £000
Bank interest receivable 88 -
Interest receivable from group undertakings 3,345 2,640
3,433 2,640
/
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Income tax

The major components of income tax (credit)/expense for the 52 weeks ended 29 April 2023 and the 53 weeks ended
30 April 2022 are:

Income statement

2023 2022

£000 £000
UK current income tax, current period 261 5,342
UK current income tax, current period, group relief 1,023 3,523
UK current income tax, prior period 387 -
UK current income tax, prior period, group relief (157) 89
Total current income tax 1,514 8,954
Deferred tax, current period (1,833) 717
Deferred tax, effect of change in rates 288 (1,041)
Deferred tax, prior periods (761) (92)
Total deferred tax (2,306) (416)
Total income tax (credit) / expense reported in the income statement (792) 8,538

The tax (credit) / expense includes a credit of £3,037,000 (2022: £543,000) in relation to the exceptional operating
debit of £15,581,000 (2022: £2,860,000), details of which can be found in Note 5.

The reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by the Company’s tax rate for the 52 weeks
ended 29 April 2023 and the 53 weeks ended 30 April 2022 is as follows:

2023 2022
£000 £000
Accounting profit before income tax 11,219 50,622
At the Company’s statutory income tax rate of 19.5% (2022: 19%) 2,188 9,618
Effects of: .
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 554 (36)
Income not taxable (699) -
Write off tax debtor transferred in from group companies 261 -
Deferred tax not provided (2,853) -
Effect of changes in tax rates 288 (1,041)
Adjustments in respect of prior periods ’ (531) (3)
At effective tax rate of -7.1% (2022: 16.9%) (792) 8,538
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Il. Income tax (continued)
Deferred tax
Recognised deferred tax

Deferred tax relates to the following:

Balance sheet Income statement

2023 2022 2023 2022

£000 £000 £000 £000
Fixed assets 4,701 5218 517 (244)
Losses 2,906 - (2,906)
Other timing differences 333 416 83 (172)
Deferred tax credit - - (2,306) (416)
Net deferred tax asset 7,940 5,634 - -

The movement in the deferred tax balance is set out below:

£000 £000
At 30 April 2022/24 April 2021 5,634 5,218
Tax credit for the period recognised in the income statement 2,306 416
At 29 April 2023/30 April 2022 7,940 5,634

Unprovided deferred tax

There are unrecognised deferred tax assets of £16,258,000 (2022: 108,000) in respect of fixed asset timing differences
of £2,641,000 (2022: £nil), trading losses of £13,525,000 (2022: £nil) and capital losses of £92,000 (2022: £108,000)
These deferred tax assets have not been recognised due to uncertainty over their recoverability.

There are no unprovided deferred tax liabilities in the current or the prior year.
Factors that may affect future tax charges

In the budget on 3 March 2021, HM Government announced that legislation was to be introduced to increase the main
rate of corporation tax from 19% to 25% from | April 2023. This legislation was substantively enacted on 23 May 2021.
The deferred tax balances have been measured at the tax rate of 25% at the balance sheet date.

On 20 June 2023, Finance (No.2) Act 2023 was substantively enacted, introducing a global minimum effective tax rate
of 15%. The legislation implements a domestic top-up tax and a multinational top-up tax, effective for accounting periods
starting on or after 3|1 December 2023. Since the legislation was not substantively enacted at the balance sheet date,
its effect is not reflected in the computation of current and deferred tax in the year ended 29 April 2023.
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12. Plant and equipment

Plant and

equipment

£000

Cost at 24 April 2021 194,277

Disposals (2.276)
Additions 8,255
Cost at 30 April 2022 200,256

Disposals (11,266)
Common control transfer (Note 32) 1,042
Additions 12,742
Cost at 29 April 2023 202,774
Depreciation at 24 April 2021 159,643
Charge for period 8,953
Impairment 347

Disposals (2,268)
Depreciation at 30 April 2022 166,675
Charge for period ' 9,400
Impairment 437

Disposals (11,244)
Depreciation at 29 April 2023 165,268
Net book value at 29 April 2023 37,506
Net book value at 30 April 2022 33,581

Plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment/reversal of an impairment if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable or that a previously recognised impairment loss may have
reversed. When a review for impairment / reversal of an impairment is conducted, the recoverable amount of an asset
or a CGU is based on the value in use calculation prepared using management assumptions and estimates. Identification
of a CGU involves significant judgement regarding largely independent cash flows and geographical proximity of stores.

An impairment review of plant and equipment was carried out based on prevailing market trading conditions. The
recoverable amounts of assets were determined from value in use calculations that incorporated cash flow forecasts
covering a 3 year period, with an inflation rate of 0.78% (2022: 2.40%) thereafter, discounted at an appropriate pre-tax
discount rate of 14.0% (2022: 14.0%).

Key assumptions for the value in use calculations were those regarding revenue, margin, operating costs and discount
rate. The forecast assumptions reflect management’s best estimates of revenue, margin, operating costs and discount
rate over the forecast period. The cash flow also includes assumptions on operating cost savings based on management
experience and assumptions. The impairment totalled £437,000 (2022: £347,000) and the total recoverable amount of
the assets impaired was £1,270,000 (2022: £nil).
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13. Intangible assets

Website Software

Goodwill costs costs Total

€000 £000 £000 £000

Cost at 24 April 2021 69,347 1,646 1,902 72,895
Additions - 84 10 94
Disposals - (45) (92) (137)
Cost at 30 April 2022 69,347 1,685 1,820 72,852
Common control transfer (Note 32) - 1,769 461 2,230
Additions - 354 56 ’ 410
Disposals - - ()] ("
Cost at 29 April 2023 69,347 3,808 2,336 75,491
Amortisation at 24 April 2021 69,347 1,153 1,485 71,985
Charge for period - 147 175 322
Disposals - (29) (53) (82)
Amortisation at 30 April 2022 69,347 1,271 1,607 72,225
Charge for period - 503 202 705
Disposals - - (1) (1)
Amortisation at 29 April 2023 . 69,347 1,774 1,808 72,929
Net book value at 29 April 2023 - 2,034 528 2,562
Net book value at 30 April 2022 - 414 213 627

Goodwill of £69,347,000, which arose on the acquisition of the trade and assets of the subsidiary undertaking
Waterstones Overseas Limited on 26 April 2008, was capitalised. This goodwill was subject to an annual impairment
review so as to ensure that the carrying amount was not greater than the recoverable amount. On the basis of such a
review, provision was made at 30 April 2011 against the full value of the goodwill. This reflected the valuation of the
Company inherent in the sale of the business by HMV plc on 28 June 201 | for £53.5m on a cash-free, debt-free basis.
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14. Investments in subsidiaries

Investment in
subsidiaries

£000

Cost at 24 April 2021 and 30 April 2022 27,261
Additions 6,985
Cost at 29 April 2023 34,246
Provision at 24 April 2021 and 30 April 2022 -
Impairment 6,985
Provision at 29 April 2023 6,985
Net book value at 29 April 2023 27,261
Net book value at 30 April 2022 27,261

The Company’s direct and indirect subsidiary undertakings, which are 100% owned, are as follows:

Name of undertaking Country of incorporation Status

Waterstones Overseas Limited England & Wales Dormant

Hatchards UK Limited England & Wales Dormant

Waterstones Academic Bookstores Limited . England & Wales - - Dormant

Ottakar’s Limited England & Wales Dormant

Ottakar’s Town Limited England & Wales Dormant -

The Waterstones Pension Trustee (Ireland) Limited Ireland Non-trading

Blackwell Limited England & Wales Non-trading

Blackwell UK Limited England & Wales Non-trading

W.Heffer & Sons Limited England & Wales Dormant

Blackwell (Scotland) Limited Scotland Dormant

Blackwell (Trustees) Limited England & Wales Dormant

BH Blackwell Limited . England & Wales Dormant

All of the above shareholdings are held directly with the exception of Ottakar’s Limited, Ottakar’s Town Limited and
Blackwell UK Limited.

The registered address of all subsidiaries, with the exception of The Waterstones Pension Trustee (Ireland) Limited
and Blackwell (Scotland) Limited, is 203-206 Piccadilly, London, W] 9HD. The registered address for The Waterstones
Pension Trustee (Ireland) Limited is 6th Floor, 2 Grand Canal Square, Dublin 2, Ireland and the registered office of
Blackwell (Scotland) Limited is Blackwell Bookshop, 53-62 South Bridge, Edinburgh, EHI 1YS.

I5. Inventories -

Inventories primarily comprise finished goods and goods for resale. The replacement cost of inventories is considered
to be not materially different from the balance sheet value.

16. Right of return assets
Right of return assets comprise the Company’s right to recover goods from the customer under its returns policy.

The Company uses the expected value method to estimate the value of goods that will be returned. The revenue
relating to expected returns is deferred and recorded in trade and other payables. The carrying value of the inventory
expected to be returned is recorded as a right of return asset.
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17. Trade and other receivables

2023 2022
£000 £000

Non-current
Amounts due from parent undertaking 61,549 51,676
61,549 51,676

Current:

Trade receivables 2,392 413
Amounts due from fellow subsidiary undertakings 3,944 1,747
Amounts due from other related parties 121 226
Other receivables 11,018 8,552
Prepayments 14,632 13,501
32,107 24,439

The carrying value of trade and other receivables approximates to fair value.

Trade receivables are stated net of a provision for impairment of £242,000 (2022: £104,000). Trade receivables are
non-interest-bearing and are generally on 30 day terms.

The amounts due from fellow subsidiary undertakings relates to intercompany trading and is usually settled monthly
with no interest charged.

The amounts due from parent undertaking relates to an intercompany balance which has no fixed repayment date and
which accrues interest at 6.0%. Payment is not expected within 12 months of the balance sheet date and therefore the
balance has been classified as non-current. ,

The amounts due from other related parties have no fixed repayment date and do not accrue interest.
Other receivables include VAT and a property related receivables. Other receivables are non-interest bearing.

Credit risk is limited as the Company has minimal levels of trade receivables due to the nature of its retailing business.
See Note 25 for a discussion of credit risk.

I8. Cash at bank and on hand

2023 2022
£000 £000
Cash at bank and on hand 24,980 58,906
24,980 58,906
19. Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
2023 2022
£000 £000
Non-current:
Lease liabilities 96,369 93,746
96,369 93,746
Current: .
Lease liabilities 28,090 31,529
28,090 31,529

Further information about the lease liabilities is provided in Note 24.
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20. Provisions

Provisions
£000
At 30 April 2022 354
Provisions created in the period 314
Provisions utilised (340)
Provisions released (149)
At 29 April 2023 179
Provisions comprise amounts in respect of store closures and are expected to be utilised within 12 months.
21. Trade and other payables
- 2023 2022
£000 £000
Current:
Trade payables 32,614 32,533
Other payables 20,523 19,855
Accruals and deferred income 19,952 14,828
73,089 67,216

The carrying value of trade and other payables approximates to fair value. Trade payables are non-interest-bearing and
are generally on 30-60 day terms. Other payables are also non-interest-bearing.

22. Amounts due to group undertakings

2023 2022
£000 £000

Current:
Loans due to fellow subsidiary undertakings 17,901 16,270
Other amounts owed to UK parent undertaking 4,899 4,146
Other amounts due to fellow subsidiary undertakings 624 624
Other amounts due to subsidiary undertakings 31,932 31,329
55,356 52,369

The loans due to fellow subsidiary undertakings are repayable on demand. Interest is chargeable on £10,550,000
(2022: £9,707,000) of this balance at 4% and on £7,351,000 (2022: £6,563,000) of this balance at the base rate of
Barclays Bank plc at date of advance plus 4% or 7% per annum, whichever is higher.

The other amounts due to UK parent undertaking have no fixed repayment date. £Nil (2022: £115,000) of this ba‘lance
accrues interest at 6.0%.

The other amounts due to fellow subsidiary undertakings and subsidiary undertakings are non-interest-bearing with no
fixed repayment date.
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23. Contract liabilities

Contract liabilities comprise consideration received for performance obligations that have not been satisfied by the
Company at the period end arising from loyalty schemes, the sale of gift cards and internet sales.

Loyalty schemes

The Company issues loyalty rewards to customers when they purchase goods which entitles them to a future discount.
The total transaction price is allocated between the fair value of the goods sold and the rewards issued based on their
standalone fair values. The fair value of the loyalty rewards is adjusted for expected breakage, being the amount
attributable to a customer’s rights to future goods that it is expected will never be exercised. The amount attributed
to the loyalty rewards is deferred within the contract liabilities balance.

Gift cards
Sales of gift cards are treated as contract liabilities with the revenue recognised when the gift cards are redeemed.

The Company recognises breakage, being the amount attributable to a customer’s rights to future goods that it is
expected will never be exercised, in proportion to the customers’ pattern of redemption.

Internet sales

For goods sold on the internet, the sale is recognised on delivery to/collection by the customer when the customer is
deemed to have control of the goods. Deferred revenue relating to goods in transit at the period end is recognised as
a contract liability.

Balances and movement in the period

2023 2022
£000 £000
Contract liabilities 23,935 21,500
Revenue recognised in the period from:
Amounts recognised in contract liabilities at the beginning
of the period 8,448 8,045
8,448 8,045

The Company expects to recognise the revenue arising from contract liabilities over a period of 17 years (2022: 17
years).
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24, Leases
Company as a lessee
The Company leases stores, motor vehicles and IT equipment for use in its operations.

Right-of-use assets

Leasehold Motor IT

property vehicles equipment Total

£000 £000 £000 £000

As at 24 April 2021 126,776 319 - 127,095
Additions 9,013 7 329 9.349
Depreciation charge for the period (30,107) (177) (41) (30,325)
Impairment (334) - (334)
Disposals (322) - (322)
As at 30 April 2022 105,026 149 288 105,463
Additions 24,256 - 650 24,906
Common control transfer (Note 32) 9,253 - - 9,253
Depreciation charge for the period (30,052) (110) (92) (30,254)
Impairment (1.417) - - (1,417)
Disposals (686) - - (686)
As at 29 April 2023 106,380 39 846 107,265

Right-of-use assets are reviewed for impairment/reversal of an impairment if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value may not be recoverable or that a previously recognised impairment loss may have reversed.
When a review for impairment/reversal of an impairment is conducted, the recoverable amount of an asset or a CGU
is based on the value in use calculation prepared using management assumptions and estimates. |dentification of a CGU
involves significant judgement regarding largely independent cash flows and geographical proximity of stores.

An impairment review of plant and equipment was carried out based on prevailing market trading conditions. The
recoverable amounts of assets were determined from value in use calculations that incorporated cash flow forecasts
covering a 3 year period, with an inflation rate of 0.78% (2022: 2.4%) thereafter, discounted at an appropriate pre-tax
discount rate of 14.0% (2022: 14.0%). Key assumptions for the value in use calculations were those regarding revenue,
margin, operating costs and discount rate. The forecast assumptions management’s best estimates of revenue, margin,
operating costs and discount rate over the forecast period. The cash flow also includes assumptions on operating cost
savings based on management experience and assumptions. The impairment totaled £1,417,000 (2022: £334,000).

Lease liabilities

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities (included under interest-bearing loans and borrowings) and
the movements during the period: '

£000 £000
Balance at 30 April 2022/24 April 2021 125,275 158,850
Additions 23,714 8,870
Common control transfer (Note 32) 9,882 -
Accretion of interest 6,913 7,274
Payments (40,905) (46,273)
Non-cash reduction in lease liabilities arising from Covid-19
concessions (404) (2,826)
Other non-cash reduction in lease liabilities (16) (620)
As at 29 April 2023 / 30 April 2022 124,459 125,275
Current (Note 19) 28,090 31,529
Non-current (Note 19) 96,369 93,746
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24. Leases (continued)
Company as a lessee (continued)
The maturity analysis of undiscounted lease liabilities is disclosed in Note 25.

The following are the amounts recognised in profit or loss for the 52 weeks ended 29 April 2023 and 53 weeks ended

30 April 2022:

2023 2022

£000 £000
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 30,254 30,325
Impairment expense of right-of-use assets 1,417 334
Interest expense on lease liabilities 6,913 7,274
Profit on disposal (127) -
Expense related to rent payments (included in cost of sales) 487 (79)
Variable lease payments (included in cost of sales) 2,051 (760)
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 40,995 37,094

The Company had total cash outflows for leases of £43,471,000 (2022: £49,045,000) in the period.

The Company has several lease contracts that include termination options. These options are negotiated by
management to provide flexibility in managing the leased-asset portfolio and align with the Company’s business needs.
Management exercises significant judgement in determining whether these termination options are reasonably certain
to be exercised.

Set out below are the undiscounted potential future rental payments relating to periods following the exercise date of
termination options that are not included in the lease term.

Within § years More than 5 years Total
€000 £000 £000

2023
Termination options expected to be exercised 6,682 ' 700 7,382
6,682 700 7,382

2022
Termination options expected to be exercised 10,824 2,781 13,605
10,824 2,781 13,605
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25. Financial risk factors

The Company’s business exposes it to certain financial risks, such as liquidity risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and
foreign exchange risk. Further information about liquidity risk is also included within the going concern section of the
Directors’ Report.

Liquidity risk

During the period under review, the Company had sufficient funds and access to funding facilities from its parent
undertaking, Bidco, to satisfy its current requirements.

Analysis of the maturity profile of the Company'’s financial liabilities at 29 April 2023 and 30 April 2022 is shown below:

Less than 3to 12 More than
On demand 3 months months | to 5 years 5 years Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Trade and other payables 371 72,719 - - - 73,090
Amounts due to group ‘
undertakings 55,355 - - , - - 55,355
Lease liabilities 370 8,479 25,436 76,934 39,560 150,779
At 29 April 2023 56,096 81,198 25,436 76,934 39,560 279,224
Trade and other payables 351 66,865 - - - 67,216
Amounts due to group .
undertakings 52,369 - - - - 52,369
Lease liabilities 3,071 8,546 25,637 72,724 41,190 151,168
At 30 April 2022 55,791 75411 25,637 72,724 41,190 270,753

Interest rate risk

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk from its borrowings and cash deposits. The net exposure is monitored
on a regular basis.

Credit risk
The Company’s credit risk arises from its cash and outstanding receivables.

Due to the nature of the Company’s retailing business, credit risk from trade receivables is limited. Allowances are
made for doubtful debts based on the age of the debt and the customer’s financial circumstances.

Further information about credit risk is also included within the going concern section of the Directors’ Report.
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25. Financial risk factors (continued)
Foreign exchange risk
The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk from its financing and operating activities.

Forward foreign exchange contracts are used to hedge the foreign exchange risk of imports where volumes are
significant. No speculative positions are entered into. There were no currency contracts outstanding at the current or
prior balance sheet dates.

The Company is also exposed to foreign currency translation risk through its borrowings in foreign currency. The
Company does not hedge this exposure.

Sensitivity analysis

The following analysis illustrates the Company’s sensitivity to changes in market variables and shows the impact on the
result before tax and shareholders’ equity.

Interest rate sensitivity .

Based on the Company’s net debt position at the period end, and including interest-bearing intercompany loans but
excluding fixed rate borrowings, a 100 basis points movement in interest rates would affect the Company'’s result before
tax by approximately £0.1m (2022: £0.1m) and shareholders’ equity by approximately £0.Im (2022: £0.1m).

Foreign exchange rate sensitivity

A 10% change in the value of Euro against Sterling would affect the Company’s result before tax by approximately £1.7m
(2022: £1.7m) and shareholders’ equity by approximately £1.4m (2022: £1.4m).

A 10% change in the value of Dollar against Sterling would affect the Company’s result before tax by approximately
£0.7m (2022: £0.1m) and shareholders’ equity by approximately £0.5m (2022: £0.Im).

Capital management

During the period under review, the core objective of the Company was to ensure that it would be able to continue to
operate as a going concern, as well as having sufficient funds available to grow the business for the benefit of its parent
company and other stakeholders. The capital structure of the Company comprises cash and short-term deposits (see
Note 18), loans and borrowings through its intra-group facilities (see Note |7 and Note 22), interest bearing loans and
borrowings (see Note 19) and equity attributable to the parent company (see Note 27).
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26. Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

Other non-
At 30 April Lease cash At 29 April
2022 additions Cash flow changes 2023
£000 £000 £000 £000
Current lease liabilities (Note 24) (31,529) (7,919) 40,905  (29,547) (28,090)
Non-current lease liabilities
(Note 24) (93,746) (15,795) - 13,172 (96,369)
Total liabilities from financing
Activities (125,275) (23,714) 40,905 (16,375) (124,459)
Other non-
At 24 April Lease cash At 30 April
2021 additions Cash flow changes 2022
Restated Restated Restated Restated
£000 £000 £000 - £000
Current lease liabilities (Note 24) (45,366) (1,786) 46,273 (30,650) (31,529)
Non-current lease liabilities
(Note 24) (113,484) (7,084) - 26,822 - (93,746)
Total liabilities from financing
Activities (158,850) (8,870) 46,273 (3,828) (125,275)

The ‘Other’ column includes the effect of the reclassification of the non-current portion of lease liabilities to current
lease liabilities due to the passage of time, the non-cash reduction in lease liabilities arising from the effect of accrued

interest, Covid-19 lease concessions and other changes,

27. Equity
Issued share capital
2023 2022 2023 2022
Number ‘000 Number ‘000 £000 £000
Authorised
Ordinary Shares of £1 each 121,014 121,014 121,014 121,014
Allotted, called up and fully paid
Ordinary Shares of £1 each 71,014 71,014 71,014 71,014

The Company has one class of share capital, namely £1 ordinary shares, of which there are 71,014,000 allotted and
called up, all fully paid. There are no special rights or preferences attaching to the shares, and there are no restrictions

on the distribution of dividends and the repayment of capital.
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27. Equity (continued)

Merger reserve

2023 2022

£000 £000

Impairment 6,985 -

IFRS Conversion 62 -

71047 -

The merger reserve has been used to record the impact of the common control transactions arising during the period
as follows:
Impairment

As further detailed in Note 32, on 7 August 2022, the Company acquired for book value the entire share capital of
Blackwell Limited from Oxford Booksellers Limited, a company under common control. The Company then invested
a further £6,985,000 into Blackwell Limited. On the same date, the trade, certain assets and liabilities of Blackwell
Limited and its subsidiary Blackwell UK Limited (together “Blackwell’s”) were transferred to Waterstones Booksellers
Limited at their book value as held in books of Blackwell’s. Following this transfer, the carrying value of the investment
in Blackwell’s could not be supported and has therefore been impaired. Ordinarily, a reduction in the value of an
investment would be recorded as an impairment charge in profit and loss. However, in this instance, as the Company
has not suffered an overall loss as a result of the transfer as it still holds the same trade and assets within its group, the
amount of the deemed impairment has been recorded in the merger account for the trade and assets.

IFRS conversion

Blackwell’s prepares it financial statements in accordance with FRS 102 Financial Reporting Standard for UK and Ireland
and therefore the book values were converted to IFRS following transfer. The net impact of applying IFRS was £62,000
and this has been credited to a merger reserve.

28. Pension arrangements

The Waterstones Group Personal Pension Plan, a defined contribution scheme offered by the Company to all
employees in the UK, is established under a trust. The Plan provides members with individual pension saving accounts
in their own name, with a range of investment options available. Under the auto-enrolment element of the Plan,
employees have to pay 4% of qualifying earnings into the scheme which is matched by the Company. There is also a
voluntary element to the Plan under which members can choose to pay a percentage of pensionable pay, with the
members’ contributions matched by the Company up to a maximum of 6.5% of pensionable pay. Employer contributions
to the scheme during the period were £3,180,000 (2022: £2,378,000).
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29. Related party transactions

Transactions entered into with related parties during the period are as follows:

Services
Net interest rendered to /
(receivable) / (provided from) Good sold to
payable related party related party
£000 £000 £000
With UK parent undertaking:
Book Retail Bidco Limited
2023 (3,345) 39 -
2022 (1,124) 39 -
With fellow subsidiary undertakings:
Waterstones Booksellers Ireland Limited .
2023 699 96 328
2022 657 136 444
Waterstone’s Booksellers Amsterdam B.V.
2023 - 66 636
2022 - 84 466
Waterstone’s Booksellers Belgium SA
2023 196 60 446
2022 181 97 423
W. & G. Foyle Limited -
2023 - 917 5,351
2022 : ’ - 975 7,772
With other related parties::
Barnes and Noble, Inc
2023 - 43 -
2022 - . -
Wordery.com Limited
2023 - - -
2022 - - 362
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29. Related party transactions (continued)

Balances outstanding with related parties at the end of the period are as follows:

Amounts Amounts
owed by owed to
related party related party
£000 £000
With subsidiary undertakings:
Blackwell Limited
2023 810 594
2022 . - -
Blackwell UK Limited
2023 - é
2022 - -
Blackwell (Scotland) Limited
2023 - 2
2022 - -
Hatchards UK Limited
2023 - . 20,000
2022 - 20,000
Ottakar’s Limited
2023 - 196
2022 - 196
Waterstones Overseas Limited
2023 - 11,133
2022 ' - H,133
With UK parent undertaking:
Book Retail Bidco Limited
2023 . 61,549 4,898
2022 51,676 4,146
With fellow subsidiary undertakings:
Waterstones Booksellers Ireland Limited
2023 1,132 14,804
2022 358 13,496
Waterstone’s Booksellers Amsterdam B.V. ‘
2023 218 -
2022 224 N -
Waterstone’s Booksellers Belgium SA
2023 196 3,097
2022 63 2,774
W. & G. Foyle Limited
2023 1,587 624
2022 1,102 624
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29. Related party transactions (continued)

Balances outstanding with related parties at the end of the period are as follows (continued)

Amounts Amounts
owed by owed to
related party related party
£000 £000
With other related parties:
Barnes and Noble, Inc
2023 43 -
2022 78 -
Waterstones Employee Benefit Trust
2023 79 -
2022 79 -
See Notes |7 and 22 for details of the terms and conditions relating to the related party balances.
30. Remuneration of key management personnel
The remuneration of the key management personnel of the Company is set out below.
2023 2022
£000 £000
Short term employment benefits 1,416 1,370
Post employment benefits 50 45
Total compensation paid to key management personnel 1,466 1,415

31. Contingent liabilities

The Company is a guarantor to a bank loan facility held by the immediate parent undertaking of the Company, Bidco.
Part of the security for this loan facility is a debenture on the assets of the Company. Including interest, the amount

outstanding under this facility at the period end was £78,471,000 (2022: £78,278,000).
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32. Blackwell’s acquisition

On 7 August 2022, Waterstones Booksellers Limited acquired for book value the entire share capital of
Blackwell Limited from Oxford Booksellers Limited, a company under common control. On the same date the trade,
certain assets and liabilities of Blackwell Limited and its subsidiary Blackwell UK Limited (together “Blackwell’s”) were
transferred to Waterstones Booksellers Limited at their book value as held in books of Blackwell’s. Blackwell’s
prepares it financial statements in accordance with FRS 102 Financial Reporting Standard for UK and lreland and
therefore the book values were converted to IFRS following transfer. The net impact of applying IFRS was £62,000
and this has been credited to a merger reserve.

This is detailed in the table below:

IFRS

Book value conversion Total

£000 £000 £000

Plant and equipment 1,042 - 1,042
Intangible assets 2,230 - 2,230
Right-of use assets - 9,253 9,253
Inventories 4,317 - 4,317
Trade and other receivables 8,209 (187) 8,022
Cash and cash equivalents 1,312 - 1,312
Trade and other payables (9,821) 754 (9,067)
Amounts due to group undertakings ' (6,605) - (6,605)
Contract liabilities (725) - (725)
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings - (9,882) (9,882)
Provisions (16) - (16)
Merger reserve - 62 62
Book value of assets acquired (57) - (57)
Settled by inter-company transfer 57 - 57
Goodwill - - -

33. Subsequent events

On 6 July 2023, the Board agreed to start the process to hive across the assets and liabilities of W. & G. Foyle Limited
into the Company. This is expected to complete in late 2023 and is not expected to impact the financial statements for

the year ended 29 April 2023.
34. Ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party

The immediate parent undertaking of the Company is Book Retail Bidco Limited and the ultimate parent company is
Book Retail Investco Limited (incorporated in Jersey). Book Retail Investco Limited is wholly owned and controlled by
the Elliott funds. The Elliott funds receive investment advice from their investment manager Elliott Investment
Management, L.P., incorporated in Delaware, U.S.A,, and its affiliates.

The largest and smallest group, including the Company, for which consolidated accounts are prepared is that headed
by Book Retail Midco Limited. Copies of the financial statements for Book Retail Midco Limited can be obtained from

the Company Secretary, 203-206 Piccadilly, London, W] 9HD.
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